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RFP #01-16/17  CITY OF SUMTER FIXED BASED METER READ SYSTEM 
 

ADDENDUM #2 
 

1.    On page 5 line item I it states “A Customer Portal that can be accessed by Utility 
customers. At the endpoint (meter, register and meter data collection device)”: 

(1)  “Design for pit application” 
(2)  “Non-cellular transmission” 

Could you please clarify what the intent of this is, and what is meant by lines 1&2 
above?  
 
Language should read … 

I .  A Customer Portal that can be accessed by Utility customers.  
J.   At the endpoint (meter, register and meter data collection device)”: 

(1)  “Design for pit application” 
(2)  “Non-cellular transmission”  

 
2.    We received the ARCGIS file that contained the city’s assets and locations.  I sent 
this to Neptune because they have the program to open this kind of file. However, in 
that file we did not see any heights or elevations on any of the city assets. Could the 
City of Sumter please provide elevation and heights on all assets listed in that RFP? 
This will be critical information to be able to complete an accurate propagation 
study and also to give a more accurate amount for install.  I will need this 
information as soon as possible so that I can pass it along to my team to do the 
propagation study. 
 
The only additional information relative to heights is in  Attachment E located at the end of 
this Addendum. Any additional elevations needed for calculations are located in the 
Propagation Study ESRI File at http://www.sumtersc.gov/rfprfqs.aspx . 
  
3.    Can we have the results from the audit that was previously done on the current 
meters in the system? The 0-5 year age meters as well as the 5-10 year age meters?   
 
For purposes of this RFP, please assume that all meters – regardless of age – are to be 

replaced.  Meter replacement optimization may be performed later. 

4.    Does the City of Sumter currently offer online bill pay?   
 
The City offers our customers the option to pay online.  We partner with Paymentus to 

make this available. 
 
5.    Are we responsible for total project install including meters, registers, fixed base 
infrastructure, and data migration to CIS? Or are we only responsible for parts of the 
install? I.e. we only install the Fixed Base Infrastructure.  Please Clarify. 

http://www.sumtersc.gov/rfprfqs.aspx
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Vendor is responsible for providing all material including meters, registers, collection 
equipment, etc.    This is a material only RFP with the following exceptions: 

• Installation of the collection system, including collectors, repeaters and other 
fixed base infrastructure. 

 
• Installation of and training for software. 

 
• Primary responsibility for data migration will be by others; however vendor 

will be required to assist with data migration, when necessary. 
 

• Meter and register replacement will be performed by others.    
 
6.    I am trying to put together the cost analysis for the RFP and need to know the 
sizes of the meters in the 0-5 year age range.  This will help us to better be able to 
calculate the assets that Sumter will be able to leave in place, and which ones will 
need to be replaced. This will help us to know what level of replacement is needed.   
Can you please provide us with the sizes of the meters in the 0-5 year age range? 
 
For purposes of this RFP, please assume that all meters – regardless of age – are to be 

replaced.  Meter replacement optimization may be performed later. 

7.    As a meter and systems provider, will Sumter require any bonding from us as 
part of our response?  
 
The bonding costs should not be included in the final pricing number but as a separate 

itemized cost.  The City’s Insurance and Bonding requirements for any work 
performed by your company are as follows:  

CITY OF SUMTER INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
The Contractor agrees to secure at Contractor’s own expense all personnel necessary to 
carry out Contractor’s obligations under this Contract. Such personnel shall not be deemed 
to be employees of the City nor shall they or any of them have or is deemed to have any 
direct contractual relationship with the City. The City shall not be responsible for 
withholding taxes with respect to the Contractor’s compensation hereunder. Contractor 
shall not hold himself out as an employee of the City, and shall have no power or authority 
to bind or obligate the City in any manner, except the City shall make payment to 
Contractor for services as herein provided. Contractor shall obtain and maintain all licenses 
and permits required by law for performance of this contract by him. The Contractor shall 
have no claim against the City hereunder or otherwise for vacation pay, sick leave, 
retirement benefits, social security, worker’s compensation, health or disability benefits, 
unemployment insurance benefits, or employee benefits of any kind, State or Federal 
governments’ benefits, including but not limited to Social Security, workmen's 
compensation, Employment Security, sales or use tax and any other taxes and licenses or 
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insurance premiums required by law. The City shall pay no employee benefits or insurance 
premiums of any kind to or for the benefit of Contractor or his employees, agents, and 
servants by reason of this contract. The Contractor will carry liability insurance relative to 
any service that he performs for the City. A certificate of insurance must be submitted to 
the purchasing office prior to services performed, with the requested coverage and limits 
per the City, with City of Sumter listed as additional insured.  
1. Contractor's and Subcontractor's insurance: Before commencing the Work, and 

until completion and final acceptance of the Work, the Contractor shall procure and 
maintain, at its own expense, the insurance coverages described below.  Before 
starting the Work, Contractor shall furnish a Certificate of Insurance, in a form 
acceptable to Owner, evidencing the Contractor's compliance with the Agreement’s 
insurance requirements.  All insurance policies are to be written through a company 
duly authorized to transact that class of insurance within the jurisdiction of the 
Project site and shall be with insurance companies acceptable to Owner and with 
A.M. Best Rating of A minus or better.  The Certificates and policies for the 
Commercial General Liability and Business Automobile Liability Policy shall name 
Owner, and if requested, Owner's agents, as Additional Insureds for completed and 
ongoing operations on a primary and non-contributory basis.  All Insurance 
Certificates shall state policy numbers, dates of expiration, policy limits, and provide 
that the insurance will not be cancelled or changed unless Owner has been given 
written notice at least thirty (30) days prior to the date of the proposed change or 
cancellation.  If the Contractor fails to procure or maintain required insurance 
coverages, Owner shall have the right, but not the obligation, to procure and 
maintain the required insurance for and in the name of the Contractor, and 
Contractor shall pay the cost thereof and furnish all necessary information to make 
effective and maintain such insurance.  Contractor shall not commence work until 
all insurance requirements are met.    

a)Required Insurance Coverages:  The insurance coverages to be provided 
include those as set forth below unless modified in an Insurance Exhibit 
attached to the Agreement:  

(1) Commercial General Liability Insurance with limits of 
$1,000,000.00 per occurrence/$1,000,000 aggregate Bodily Injury 
and Property Damage Liability.  This coverage must, at a minimum, 
include coverage and/or endorsements for premises operations, 
products/completed operations, contractual liability assumed by 
Contractor under this Agreement, personal injury, advertising injury 
and broad form Property Damage (including coverage for explosion, 
collapse and underground hazards), and independent Contractor 
coverages.  All liability policies must be written on an "occurrence" 
basis. Such policy shall not contain Endorsement, CG 22 94 10 01.  The 
Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability insurance 
required herein shall protect the Contractor and the Owner against 
liability from damages growing out of any Contractor operations 
(including the operation of all automobiles, trucks, and other vehicles 
owned or rented) in connection with the performance of this 
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Agreement, as well as liability arising after the completion of the 
Contractor's operations.       
(2) Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance with bodily injury limits of 
$1,000,000.00 and property damage limits of $1,000,000.00 or a 
combined single limit of $1,000,000.00. 
(3) Worker's Compensation in accordance with, and providing 
coverages meeting or exceeding the limits required by, the laws of the 
State of South Carolina jurisdiction, and Employer's Liability 
Insurance with the following minimum limits: $100,000 Per Accident, 
$100,000 Per Disease for Each Employee, $500,000 aggregate.    
(4) Excess or Umbrella Liability Insurance with a policy limit of 
$1,000,000.00 per occurrence and aggregate. 
(5) Sub-Contractor Insurance:  If Contractor elects, with Owner's 
approval, to subcontract any portion of the Work to another 
Contractor, Contractor shall require of such Subcontractor insurance 
coverage similar to that required of Contractor hereunder WITH THE 
EXCEPTION OF THE EXCESS UMBRELLA POLICY and shall furnish to 
Owner evidence that such insurance coverages are currently in effect.  
Moreover, Contractor shall require any such Subcontractor to name 
Contractor and Owner as additional insured’s on Subcontractor's 
Commercial General Liability Insurance and will provide Contractor 
with a waiver of subrogation form from such sub-Contractors 
worker's compensation carrier.  Failure of Contractor to require 
Subcontractor to obtain the coverages required herein or to furnish 
Owner evidence of such coverage shall be grounds for termination for 
default. 

b. The Contractor shall furnish one copy of each Certificate of Insurance herein 
required attached to each copy of the Agreement, plus three additional copies of each 
Certificate of Insurance herein required, which shall specifically set forth evidence of all 
coverages set forth above. The Contractor shall furnish to the Owner copies of any 
endorsements that are subsequently issued amending coverage or limits. 

2. Payment and Performance Bonds: If the Contractor’s work as set forth in the 
Scope of Work exceeds $50,000.00, Contractor shall provide payment and performance 
bonds in the full amount of the Contract Sum.  

a. The payment and performance bonds, if any, shall name Owner as the 
obligee. Such bonds must be secured by cash or must be issued by a surety company 
licensed in the State of South Carolina with an "A" minimum rating of performance 
as stated in the most current publication of "Best Key Rating Guide, Property 
Liability".  
b. Upon execution of the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall furnish to 
the Owner a Performance Bond and a separate Labor and Material Payment Bond in 
a form acceptable to the Owner. The bonds shall guarantee the Contractor's faithful 
performance of the Contract and payment of all obligations arising thereunder. The 
bonds shall remain in force until the Work has been completed and accepted by the 
Owner, the provisions of all guarantees required by these Contract Documents have 
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been fulfilled, and the warranty periods and period for correction of the Work as 
provided in the Contract Documents have expired, or the period for filing 
mechanics' liens has expired, whichever occur latest, after which time the bonds 
shall lapse. The Contractor shall bear all costs in connection with the bonds as a part 
of the Contract.  One executed copy of each bond shall be attached to each executed 
copy of the Contract Documents prior to the execution of the Contract Documents by 
the Owner. 
c. The Contractor shall require the attorney-in-fact who executes the required 
bonds on behalf of the surety to affix thereto a certified and current copy of the 
power of attorney. 

For construction contracts, all items delivered to or drop shipped to the City of Sumter site 
remain the sole responsibility of the Contractor until fully installed and attached to the City 
of Sumter which is the subject of this Contract; Contractor is solely responsible for 
maintaining insurance on and replacing said items in the event of theft, damage, or other 
loss.  
 
8..            Regarding the Large meters please provide some clarifications on whether 
the City wants to change any meter older than 5 years.   
 
For purposes of this RFP, please assume that all meters – regardless of age – are to be 

replaced.  Meter replacement optimization may be performed later. 

9..            Is there a specific page limit to the RFP?   
 
No. However, it is the City’s intent to limit the cost of responding to this solicitation, so you 
are encouraged to be organized and succinct in your submissions. Thick volumes of 
background and general marketing material are not desired and will not be evaluated. 
Respondents shall carefully read the information contained in this solicitation and submit a 
focused and complete response to all requirements and questions as directed. Incomplete 
responses will be considered non-responsive and subject to rejection. Submissions should 
be thoughtful, tightly focused and clearly document your firm’s suitability for this Project, 
your responsiveness to the evaluation criteria, your understanding of the Project 
requirements and your proven ability to contribute to achieving the goals of the City. 
 
10.            Pg 5  - “A Customer Portal than can be accessed by the Utility Customers. At 
the endpoint…..”  Please clarify this as it appears to be something out of order in the 
RFP ?  
 
Language should read … 
I .  A Customer Portal that can be accessed by Utility customers.  

J.   At the endpoint (meter, register and meter data collection device)”: 
(1)  “Design for pit application” 
(2)  “Non-cellular transmission” 
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11.       Please confirm this submittal will be an electronic submittal only to you.       
 
Only electronic submittals to the City will be accepted. Please see below as noted in RFP 
documents: 

1.1.1. Proposals shall be submitted electronically only. Proposers may upload 
proposals by visiting the following URL: http://www.sumtersc.gov/submit-
rfp.aspx - Only files in .pdf, .xls, or .doc formats will be accepted. Printing shall 
be enabled on files submitted. The RFP # and Name must be included on the 
web RFP form and all attached documents at time of submittal. In the event of 
technical difficulties in submitting proposals, proposers should contact the 
City’s Purchasing Director, Alice Bailey, at 803.436.2587 or by email to 
abailey@sumter-sc.com. 

1.1.2. Number each side of a printed page consecutively, including the Letter of 
Commitment, brochures, licenses, resumes, supplemental information  

1.1.3. The front cover must clearly identify the Project Name, Project Number, and 
the Date of Submission and the Name of Proposer.  

1.1.4. Separate and identify each criteria response by use of a divider sheet with an 
integral tab identified as follows:  

• Letter of Commitment  

• Prerequisite Criteria  

• Project Personnel  

• Firm’s Experience  

• Cost Proposal and Value 

• Special Features, System Capabilities, and Warranties   

12. What type of Neptune registers are currently deployed? Residential and 
commercial? 
 
Direct Read, Pro Read and Radio Read registers both residential and commercial. 
 
13..        Are all Neptune meters direct read? If not, what type of Neptune radio is 
connected to the meter?  What is the connection type? Wired? 
 
See question number 5. Not wired, the majority of meters are manual read.   
 



ELEVATED TANK DATA

Tank Name PSI full PSI empty
Overflow in 

Ft.

Bottom 
of bowl 
in Ft.

Bowl 
depth Gallon cap. sea level Date Built

Longitude 
North

Latitude 
West

Allice Drive 51.15 38.29 118 78 40' 500,000 305' 1963 33  56.129' 80  22.729'

Lafayettte 55.05 51.06 127 104 30 500,000 305 1968 33  56.338' 80  20.434'

HWY 521 65.02 58.91 150 120 30' 500,000 305 1978 33  53.432' 80  20.102'

WP#3 60.08 53.31 138.6 108.6 30' 500,000 315 1976 33  51.747' 80  22.851'

WP#4 68.88 59.84 158.9 121.9 37 500,000 305 1996 33  53.506' 80  21.448'

Sumter High 55.05 43.94 127 89.5 35 500,000 305 1987 33  53.805 80  23.813'

Jeffferson Rd. 54.53 43.50 125.8 88.6 37.2 500,000 305 2003 33  57.924' 80  21.820'

Oswego Old 55.92 50.86 129 103.6 25.5 125,000 305 1983 34  00.448' 80  17.116'

Oswego New 62.42 59.20 144 120.6 25 125,000 305 2000 33  54.325' 80  15.163'

Dalzell 59.64 49.29 137.6 100.4 37.2 500,000 378 1999 34  00.766' 80  26.775'

Rembert 56.87 54.00 131.2 110 30 100,000 391 2003 34  06.066' 80  31.954'

Hwy 521S 33 51'41.88"
80 

18'59.05"

Mayesville 54.05 45.36 124.7 92.4 33 75,000 295 unknown 33  59.156' 80  12.540'

Clearwell readings
Ma-4/16=% x scale(ie 10) =ft

ie 12-4/16=.5x12=6
To get tank level multiply the pressure by 2.307

Ma SCALE %
LEVEL IN 

FT.
SCAL

E LEVEL
20 12 1 12 10 10
19 12 15 11.25 10 9.375
18 12 14 10.5 10 8.75
17 12 13 9.75 10 8.125
16 12 12 9 10 7.5
15 12 11 8.25 10 6.875
14 12 10 7.5 10 6.25
13 12 9 6.75 10 5.625
12 12 8 6 10 5
11 12 7 5.25 10 4.375
10 12 6 4.5 10 3.75
9 12 5 3.75 10 3.125
8 12 4 3 10 2.5
7 12 3 2.25 10 1.875
6 12 2 1.5 10 1.25
5 12 1 0.75 10 0.625
4 12 0 0 10 0

ATTACHMENT E
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